
 
Board Meeting Agenda 

February 28, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

In Person Irrigon Library 
490 NE Main Ave, Irrigon, OR 97844 

Zoom https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84278513483?pwd=cXcrb2Iva2dFR3lVRS9lYkRQam1KQT09 
Meeting ID: 842 7851 3483 
Passcode: 856441 

                                    
                                                                                                                                                                                             
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Public Comments 

Maximum of 3 minutes per person/topic.  Multiple items on the same topic need to be combined through one speaker.   
A maximum of 30 minutes may be allotted for public comment. 

 
3. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

A. January 31, 2022  Regular Session 
 

4. Promise of Excellence Review  John Murray 
 

5. Chief of Staff Report  Dr. Ed Berretta 
 

6. CEO Report  Emily Roberts 
 
7. CNO Report  Kathleen Greenup, RN 

 
8. HR Director Report  Patti Allstott 

 
9. Financial Report  Nicole Mahoney 

 
10. New Business 

A. Community Benefit Request 
B. Pharmacy Service Contract 
C. Rocky Mountain Physical Therapy Services Contract 
D. Retirement Plan Restatement 
E. Streamline 

 
11. Old Business 

 
12. Executive Session 

A. ORS 192.660(2)(f) To consider information or records that are exempt from public inspection. 
 
13. Adjourn  
 



1

  

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
em

b
e

rs
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 
D

a
te

/T
im

e
: 

Ja
n

ua
ry

 3
1

, 
20

2
2 

@
 6

:3
0

 p
.m

. 
B

o
a

rd
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

: 
Jo

h
n 

M
u

rr
a

y,
 C

ar
ri

 G
rie

b
, 

A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

ui
st

, 
D

ia
ne

 K
ilk

en
n

y,
 M

a
ri

e
 S

h
im

e
r 

(Z
oo

m
) 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
io

n
e

e
r 

M
em

o
ri

a
l C

lin
ic

 
1

3
0

 T
h

o
m

p
so

n 
A

ve
 

H
e

p
p

n
e

r,
 O

R
  

9
78

3
6

 

G
u

e
s

ts
: 

S
ta

ff
 M

em
b

e
rs

: 
 E

m
ily

 R
o

b
e

rt
s,

 N
ic

o
le

 M
a

h
o

n
ey

, 
D

a
n

ie
lle

 M
a

te
le

sk
a

 (
Z

oo
m

),
 S

a
m

 V
a

n
 L

ae
r 

(Z
o

om
),

 P
at

ti 
A

lls
to

tt
, 

T
o

dd
 S

ch
m

id
t 

(Z
o

om
),

 K
a

rm
a

 E
ze

ll 
(Z

oo
m

),
 J

os
h

 S
iru

ce
k 

G
u

e
s

ts
: 

 N
o

n
e 

P
re

s
s

: 
 A

p
ri

l S
yk

es
 

V
id

e
o

 D
ia

l I
n

: 
Z

o
o

m
 

L
e

a
d

e
r:

 
Jo

h
n 

M
u

rr
a

y,
 B

o
ar

d
 C

h
a

irm
a

n
 

R
e

c
o

rd
e

r:
 

Jo
d

i F
e

rg
u

so
n

 

V
is
io
n
:

B
e

 t
h

e
 fi

rs
t c

ho
ic

e
 f

o
r 

q
u

al
ity

, 
co

m
p

as
si

o
na

te
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 le

ad
 th

e
 w

a
y 

in
 p

ro
m

o
tin

g 
w

e
lln

e
ss

 a
nd

 im
pr

o
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lth
 in

 M
o

rr
o

w
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

M
is
si
o
n
: 

W
or

ki
n

g
 to

g
et

he
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

xc
e

lle
nc

e
 in

 
h

e
a

lth
ca

re
 

 

V
a

lu
es

: 
In

te
g

rit
y,

 C
om

pa
ss

io
n

, 
Q

u
al

ity
, R

e
sp

ec
t,

 T
e

am
w

o
rk

, 
F

in
a

nc
ia

l R
es

p
on

si
b

ili
ty

A
g

e
n

d
a

 I
te

m
 

N
o

te
s

/M
in

u
te

s 

1
. 

C
a

ll
 t

o
 O

rd
e

r 
 

C
h

a
ir

m
a

n
 J

o
h

n 
M

ur
ra

y 
ca

lle
d 

th
e

 m
e

e
tin

g
 t

o 
o

rd
er

 a
t 

6
:3

0 
p

.m
. 

2
. 

P
u

b
li

c
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
 

N
o

n
e

. 

3
. 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

o
f 

M
in

u
te

s 
M

O
T

IO
N

: C
a

rr
i G

ri
e

b
 m

o
ve

d
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 m

in
u

te
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 

2
9

, 2
02

1
 r

eg
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

, 2
02

2
 s

p
e

ci
a

l s
e

s
s

io
n

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 m

in
u

te
s

 a
s

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
. 

A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

u
is

t 
s

e
c

o
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 m
o

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

 p
a

s
se

d
 u

n
a

n
im

o
u

s
ly

 b
y 

a
ll

 b
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
p

re
s

e
n

t.
 

4
. 

P
ro

m
is

e
 o

f 
E

x
c

e
ll

en
c

e
 R

e
vi

e
w

 
 

Jo
h

n 
M

u
rr

a
y 

re
vi

e
w

e
d

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 to
p

ic
s 

of
 t

he
 

. 

5
. 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 

 
E

m
ily

 r
e

ad
 D

r.
 B

e
rr

e
tt

a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
se

e 
b

o
a

rd
 p

a
ck

e
t)

. 

6
. 

C
E

O
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

C
E

O
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 b

y 
E

m
ily

 R
o

be
rt

s 
(s

e
e 

b
oa

rd
 p

ac
ke

t)
. 

 

7
. 

C
N

O
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

C
N

O
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y 

K
a

th
le

en
 G

re
en

u
p

 is
 in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 th

e
 b

o
a

rd
 p

ac
ke

t.
  

8
. 

H
R

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 
H

R
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 b

y 
P

at
ti 

A
lls

to
tt

 (
se

e 
b

o
a

rd
 p

ac
ke

t)
. 

 

9
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

ep
o

rt
F

in
a

nc
ia

ls
 fo

r 
D

ec
em

b
e

r
w

e
re

 p
re

se
n

te
d

b
y 

N
ic

ol
e

 M
a

h
on

e
y.

  
T

h
e

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
ha

d
 a

 $
6

7
,7

5
5

lo
ss

 fo
r 

th
e

 m
on

th
.  

1
0

.
N

ew
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

M
in

u
te

s 



2

A
.

P
ip

e
lin

e
 P

ha
rm

a
cy

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
E

m
ily

 p
re

se
nt

e
d

 a
n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e 
a

g
re

em
e

nt
 w

ith
 P

ip
el

in
e

 P
h

a
rm

a
cy

.  

M
O

T
IO

N
: 

 A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

u
is

t 
m

o
ve

d
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
g

re
em

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 P
ip

el
in

e
 P

h
a

rm
a

c
y.

  
 C

a
rr

i 
G

ri
e

b
 s

e
co

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

.  
T

h
e

 m
o

ti
o

n
 p

as
se

d
 u

n
an

im
o

u
s

ly
 b

y 
a

ll
 b

o
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 p

re
s

e
n

t.
 

B
. 

N
u

rs
e

 P
ra

ct
iti

o
ne

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

 
E

m
ily

 p
re

se
nt

e
d

 N
ur

se
 P

ra
ct

iti
o

n
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
V

ic
ki

 K
e

nt
, 

A
R

N
P

 f
o

r 
Ir

rig
on

 M
e

d
ic

a
l C

lin
ic

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
va

l. 
  

  

M
O

T
IO

N
: 

 A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

u
is

t 
m

o
ve

d
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
g

re
em

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

V
ic

k
i K

en
t,

 A
R

N
P

 a
n

d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 E
m

il
y 

R
o

b
e

rt
s

 t
o

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 b
e

h
al

f 
o

f 
M

C
H

D
. 

 D
ia

n
e 

K
il

ke
n

n
y 

s
e

c
o

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

. 
 T

h
e

 m
o

ti
o

n
 p

a
s

s
ed

 u
n

a
n

im
o

u
s

ly
 b

y 
a

ll
 b

o
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

p
re

s
e

n
t.

 

C
. 

B
o

a
rd

 D
es

ig
n

a
te

 
F

u
n

ds
 

 
N

ic
o

le
 a

sk
ed

 t
he

 b
o

ar
d

 if
 t

h
e

y 
w

o
u

ld
 li

ke
 to

 k
e

ep
 t

he
 b

oa
rd

 d
e

si
gn

a
te

d
 fu

nd
s 

a
t 

10
%

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

tt
om

 li
n

e.
  

M
O

T
IO

N
: 

 C
a

rr
i 

G
ri

e
b

 m
o

ve
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 1

0
%

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

b
o

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

s 
a

s
 d

is
c

u
s

se
d

. 
 A

a
ro

n
 P

a
lm

q
u

is
t 

s
ec

o
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e 

m
o

ti
o

n
.  

T
h

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

 p
a

ss
e

d
 u

n
a

n
im

o
u

s
ly

 b
y 

a
ll

 b
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 p
re

s
e

n
t.

 

D
. 

B
e

h
a

vi
o

ra
l H

e
al

th
 

C
o

n
su

lta
n

t 
P

o
si

tio
n

 a
t 

P
io

n
e

e
r 

M
e

m
o

ri
a

l C
lin

ic
 

 
E

m
ily

 p
re

se
n

te
d 

a 
b

e
ha

vi
o

ra
l h

e
a

lth
 c

ha
rt

 a
nd

 i
s 

re
q

u
es

tin
g 

th
at

 w
e

 o
p

e
n 

u
p 

o
u

r 
re

cr
u

itm
e

n
t 

ef
fo

rt
s 

to
 i

n
cl

u
d

e 
D

o
ct

o
rs

 o
f 

P
sy

ch
o

lo
g

y 
a

lo
n

g 
w

ith
 L

ic
en

se
d

 C
lin

ic
al

 S
o

ci
al

 W
or

ke
rs

. 

M
O

T
IO

N
: 

 A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

u
is

t 
m

o
ve

d
 t

o
 a

ll
o

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

s
yc

h
o

lo
g

is
t.

  C
a

rr
i G

ri
e

b
 s

e
c

o
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 m
o

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

 p
as

s
e

d
 

u
n

a
n

im
o

u
s

ly
 b

y 
a

ll
 b

o
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 p

re
s

en
t.

 

E
. 

P
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 
C

o
m

p
e

ns
a

tio
n 

 
E

m
ily

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 n
e

w
 h

o
u

rl
y 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
ph

ys
ic

ia
ns

 w
o

rk
in

g
 in

 c
lin

ic
 t

o
 b

e
 u

se
d

 f
or

 a
ll 

ne
w

 a
n

d
 e

xi
st

in
g

 3
-y

e
a

r 
p

h
ys

ic
ia

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
nt

s.
  

T
h

is
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 w

a
ge

s 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
e

tit
iv

e
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
cr

ui
tin

g.
  

 

M
O

T
IO

N
:  

A
a

ro
n

 P
a

lm
q

u
is

t m
o

ve
d

 to
 a

p
p

ro
ve

 th
e

 n
e

w
 r

at
e

s
.  

D
ia

n
e

 K
il

ke
n

n
y 

s
e

c
o

n
d

ed
 th

e
 m

o
ti

o
n

.  
T

h
e

 m
o

ti
o

n
 p

as
s

e
d

 u
n

a
n

im
o

u
s

ly
 

b
y 

a
ll

 b
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 p
re

se
n

t.
 

F
. 

P
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 P
a

tie
nt

 
L

o
a

d 
 

 t
o

 t
h

e 
n

e
xt

 
m

e
e

tin
g

. 

G
. 

B
o

a
rd

 P
ac

ke
ts

 
a

n
d

 F
in

a
nc

ia
ls

 o
n

 
W

eb
si

te
 

 
T

h
e

 b
o

a
rd

 w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 s
ee

 t
he

 b
oa

rd
 p

ac
ke

t 
an

d
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
ls

 o
n 

th
e

 w
e

b
si

te
. 

 T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ad
e

d 
to

 t
he

 w
e

b
si

te
 w

ith
 a

 b
rie

f 
 

1
1

. 
O

ld
 B

u
s

in
e

ss
 

 

 
 

N
o

n
e

. 

1
2

. 
A

d
jo

u
rn

 
W

ith
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
er

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

to
 c

om
e

 b
e

fo
re

 th
e

 b
o

a
rd

, 
th

e
 m

e
e

tin
g

 a
d

jo
u

rn
e

d 
a

t 
7:

3
5

 p
.m

. 

M
in

u
te

s 
ta

ke
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
bm

itt
e

d
 b

y 
Jo

di
 F

e
rg

us
o

n
. 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

_
__

_
__

_
_

__
_

__
_

_
__

_
_

_
__

__
_

_
_

__
_

_
 





 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
February 28, 2022 
 
To: Morrow County Health District Board of Directors 

From: Emily Roberts, CEO 

Re: CEO Board Report 
 
Electronic Medical Record: 

 The District is continuing its search for a new electronic medical record.  The three EMRs under 
consideration are: 

o Epic via OCHIN 
o Thrive (CPSI) 
o Meditech 

 OCHIN is finalizing scoping and pricing. 
 
Service Excellence Initiative 

 
workshops for all District employees.   

 Workshops are scheduled through March 8, 2022.  After this date, workshops will be available 
ine learning management system. 

 

Provider Recruitment: 
 The District has open searches for permanent candidates with Merritt Hawkins, Pacific 

Companies, and Healthcare Recruitment Link. 
 The District is currently recruiting for the following provider positions: 

o Irrigon Medical Clinic: 
 1 Family Practice Physician (MD/DO) 

 Currently 1 DO candidate with second interview scheduled in February. 
 Currently 1 MD candidate with a Zoom interview scheduled in March. 

 1 Advanced Practice Provider (PA/NP) 
o Pioneer Memorial Clinic: 

 1 Family Practice Physician (MD/DO) 
 Currently 1 MD candidate under consideration. 

 1 Advanced Practice Provider (PA/NP) 
 Currently 1 PA candidate under consideration. 

 



 
 
 

February 28, 2022 

To:  Morrow County Health District Board of Directors 

From:  Kathleen Greenup, RN, CNO 

RE:  CNO Board Report 

Pioneer Memorial Hospital Report: 

 The District has remained compliant with staffing plans at the hospital level. 
 Oregon Health Authority has granted the District 4 contract RNs  all oriented and 

working full time.  PMH staff are happy to have the RN assistance and the OHA 
RNs are thankful to be in our,  

 Three full-time RNs have been hired.  The District is continuing to recruit for 
additional full and/or part-time RN hires. 

COVID Updates:  

 The District has adequate PPE and testing supplies at all locations. 
 The District continues to be able to offer community members inpatient and 

outpatient treatment options for COVID.  There are ample doses available to 
continue all treatment options. 

Quality Performance Improvement Projects: 

 New quality measures for 2022 are underway. 

Pioneer Memorial Clinic Report: 

 PMC is fully staffed and is looking forward to the Clinic Director starting in early 
April. 

 Dr. Sirucek began seeing patients via remote telehealth and feedback was well 
received. 



 
Pioneer Memorial 
Hospital & Nursing 

Facility 

Pioneer Memorial 
Home Health & 

Hospice 

Pioneer Memorial 
Clinic 

Irrigon Medical 
Clinic 

Ione Community 
Clinic 

Morrow County 
Ambulance

P (541) 676-9133 P  (541) 676-2946 P  (541) 676-5504  P  (541) 922-5880 P  (541) 422-7128 P  (541) 676-9133 
F  (541) 676-2901 F  (541) 676-9017 F  (541) 676-9025  F  (541) 922-5881 F  (541) 422-7145 F (541) 676-2901
TDD  (541) 676-2908      

MCHD is An Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer 

Please be advised that the attached interim financial statements are unaudited and subject to 
change.  The amounts reported on an interim basis may not include all cost report settlements, 
final audit adjustments, or unearned income, such as COVID provider relief funding.  The audited 
financial statements will be posted to the Morrow County Health District website upon 
completion. 

If you have any questions related to these documents, please contact Nicole Mahoney, Chief 
Financial Officer, at 541-676-2925. 























Page 1 of 7  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
(Pharmaceutical Services Contract) 

 
 
DATED:  

BETWEEN: 

Morrow County Health District dba 
Pioneer Memorial Hospital 
564 E. Pioneer Drive 
Heppner, OR 97836 

 
AND 

"District"

  
An Oregon Corporation  
PO Box 427 
Heppner, OR 97836 
Federal I.D. 93-0559568; 
State I.D.  # 0422654-5. 

"Murray s" 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Recitals 

 

Morrow County Health District dba Pioneer Memorial Hospital has the need for a pharmaceutical 
consultant for the Oregon-  who has properly 

Drugs shall provide pharmaceutical consultant services with the pharmacist acting in the capacity 
of a part-  staff agree to practice within the state and federal laws 
governing the practice of the profession and in compliance with regulatory and accreditation 

state of Oregon.  Additional certificates or specialized training that is requested by the District will 

this contract may be amended from time to time if agreed upon in writing by both parties.
 

THIS CONTRACT, WHICH INCLUDES ATTACHED SECTIONS AND ALL ATTACHED 
EXHIBITS, CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. THE 
TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL NOT BE WAIVED, ALTERED, MODIFIED, 
SUPPLEMENTED, OR AMENDED, IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER, EXCEPT BY 
WRITTEN INSTRUMENT. SUCH WAIVER, ALTERATION, MODIFICATION, 
SUPPLEMENTATION, OR AMENDMENT, IF MADE, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY IN 
THE SPECIFIC INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN, AND SHALL BE 
VALID AND BINDING ONLY IF IT IS SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES TO THIS CONTRACT. 
THERE ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS, OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL 
OR WRITTEN, REGARDING THIS CONTRACT EXCEPT AS SPECIFIED OR REFERENCED 
HEREIN. DISTRICT AND MURRAYS, BY THE SIGNATURE BELOW OF THEIR 



Page 2 of 7  

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE 
READ THIS CONTRACT, UNDERSTAND IT, AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS. 



Page 3 of 7  

1. Term 

 
i. The term of this contract shall be one (1) year from the date the contract is fully executed 

by both parties.  Contract shall automatically renew in one (1) year increments unless either 
party gives notice as required below.  Either party may request a modification of the terms 

 date. 
 

2. Termination 
 

i. This contract may be terminated by either party for any reason upon giving ninety (90)
days  written notice to the other party of contract termination. 

 
3. Murray's Services 

 
will meet the Oregon Board of Pharmacy requirements for a Drug Room in a hospital with 

tasks including, but not limited to: 
 

i. Establishing written procedures for the distribution of pharmaceuticals 
ii. Providing on-site services at a minimum of twice weekly 

iii. Providing supervision of all drug storage areas in the hospital 
iv. Establishing procedures and training of Nursing for preparation of parenteral medications
v. Managing formulary  

vi. Preparing and dispensing medications 
vii. Managing automated dispensing cabinets 

viii. Participating in the hospital's Quality Assurance Committee (pharmacist or pharmacist's 
designee) and Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee 

ix. Maintaining records as required by state or federal law 
 
4. Service not provided:   

 
i. -

patient medications except for emergency room three day supplies for dispensing out of ER when 
local retail pharmacy is closed.  

 
ii. 

responsibility of the Pioneer Memorial Hospital registered nurses. The District will hold Murray's 
harmless from any and all liability for the mixing and patient use of all IV admixtures.

 
iii. Non-skilled swing bed prescriptions will not be filled from Pioneer Memorial 

Hospital inventory, except for specific medications that are the responsibility of the 
facility to provide (over-the-counter medications).  

 
5. Compensation/ Account Arrearage 

 
i. Pharmacist staff may work up to a total of 24 hours per week, at a rate of $93.00/hour. 

Pharmacy technician staff may work up to a total of 24 hours/week, at a rate of $30.00/hour.  

week if they do not total 24. All special projects that fall outside of the normal duties of the 
pharmacist(s) and pharmacy technician(s) must be agreed upon with Administration prior 



Page 4 of 7  

Invoices for payment will not exceed 31 consecutive calendar days.  
 

ii. This amount is due and payable on the 10th day of each month for the prior month of service. 
At each contract renewal, rates are subject to negotiation. 

 
6. Service for Pharmaceuticals not Regularly Stocked By Murrays 

 
On occasion, the District will need pharmaceuticals not stocked in the Hospital Drug Room or kept 
regularly in stock at Murray's business in downtown Heppner.  Should the District have a need for 

ch item from a neighboring medical 
facility or pharmacy. The District agrees to pay Murray's staff $30.00 per hour and $.545 a mile for 
travel in retrieving such items. If the District prefers to send an available District employee to 
retrieve medications, Murray s will assist in making arrangements to pick up the medications at no 
cost to the district.   

 
7. After Hours Consultation 

 
Days and hours pharmacy staff is on-site is variable and subject to change depending on workload 
and schedule. After hours emergency contact information of will be 
provided. 
be contacted at the retail pharmacy Monday through Friday 9 am-1 pm and 2- es 
not guarantee the ability to return to the hospital when called. The pharmacist will physically return 
to the hospital if necessary as soon as reasonably feasible.  

 
8. Access to Records 

 
For not less than three (3) years after contract expiration, the District, and any appropriate state and 
federal agencies, or their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, 
papers, and records of the Murray s which are directly pertinent to this specific contract  for the 
purpose  of  making audit,  examination,  excerpts,  and transcripts. 

 
 

9. Indemnification 
 

omissions of Murray industry, in 
addition to coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage liability under a 

s carries insurance to cover its 
s for its services as identified under this contract. 

Its services do not include responsibility for the administration of pharmaceuticals to patients. 
Pharmaceutical administration will be done by District staff in accordance with District policy. The 
District shall forever defend, indemnify and hold Murray s harmless from any claim, loss or liability 
arising out of, or in any way connected with administration of pharmaceuticals, including, but not 
limited to the preparation and administration of IV admixtures, by District staff.  In the event of any 
litigation or proceeding brought against Murray s and rising out of, or in any way connected with 
any of the above events or claims, against which Murray s must defend, District shall, upon notice 
from Murray s, vigorously resist and defend such actions or proceedings through legal counsel 
reasonably satisfactory to Murray s. Murray s agrees to indemnify and save harmless and defend 



Page 5 of 7  

the District from and against all claims arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of 
Murray s under this agreement. 

 
10. Employment Status 

 
Murray s shall not be considered an employee of the District.  Murray s will be responsible for 
payment of all applicable federal, state and local taxes including social security payments.
 
11. Severability 

 
The parties agree that if any term or provision of this contract is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining 
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 
construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the particular term or provision held 
to be invalid. 

 
12. Force Majeure 

 
Neither party shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, 
and war which is beyond such party's reasonable control. Each party shall, however, make all 
reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the 
cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under the contract.

 
13. Waiver 

 
The failure of the either party to enforce any provision of this contract shall not constitute a 
waiver by either party of that or any other provision. 

 
14.  Agreements/HIPAA  
 

comply with all federal and state laws and regulations governing the privacy and 
security of health information, including without limitation, the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the regulations promulgated there under, and shall remain in 
compliance with these laws and regulations as they may be amended from time to time.  The parties 
agree to execute whatever additional documents or agreements may be necessary to come into 
compliance with these laws and regulations. 

 
15.  Prior Agreements 

 
This contract is the entire, final and complete agreement of the parties pertaining to the 
pharmaceutical service to be supplied the District and supersedes and replaces all prior or
existing written and oral agreements between the parties or their representatives relating to the 
property. 

 
16.  Applicable Law 

 
This contract is entered into in Oregon and the property is located in Oregon. The parties 
agree that the laws of the State of Oregon shall be utilized and constrain the contract in 



Page 6 of 7  

enforcing the rights and remedies of the parties.
 

17.  Cost and Attorney fees 
 
In the event any action, judicial or otherwise, is taken to enforce or interpret any of the terms of 
this contract, or collection action is taken to enforce any judgment based upon this contract, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all expenses which may have been 
reasonably incurred and court awarded in taking such action, including, but not limited to, attorney 
fees, whether incurred in an action, suit or appeal from a judgment or decree therein or in 
connection with non-judicial action. 

 
 
 

 Inc.   
Name/Title Date

 
 
 
Approved by Morrow County                        ____________________________________________ 
Health District                                                  Name/Title                                                       Date 



Page 7 of 7  

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK







































































































Page 1 of 15 
 

PHYSICIAN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
 

This Physician Employment Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this 28th day of 
February, 2022 by and between the Morrow County Health District, a political subdivision of 
the State of Oregon ("District") and Rodney Schaffer, MD ("Physician"). The 
commencement date of this Agreement shall be as set forth in Section 4.1. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Physician shall be licensed to practice medicine in Oregon. Failure to become 
licensed or maintain license shall render this contract NULL AND VOID. 
 

B. District owns and manages rural health care clinics ("Clinics"); located at 130 
Thompson, Heppner; 220 North Main, Irrigon; 365 West 3rd Street, Ione; and Pioneer 
Memorial Hospital and Nursing Facility ("Hospital") P.O. Box 9, 564 E. Pioneer 
Drive, Heppner. District provides physician medical services ("Professional 
Services") for patients of Clinics and Hospital. 
 

C. District has a demonstrated need to employ Physician to provide Professional 
Services for patients of District and Physician desires to provide Professional Services 
for persons presenting at facilities of District, upon terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 
 

D. It is the intent of the parties to comply with all laws, regulations, and requirements 
applicable to physicians, clinics, hospitals, Medicare/Medicaid participants, and heath 
care providers in general and they have endeavored to fashion this Agreement  in  
compliance therewith. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
ARTICLE I  EMPLOYMENT 

 
1.1  Employment: The District hereby employs Physician to provide Professional 

Services for patients of District, and Physician hereby accepts such employment, 
upon terms and conditions set forth herein. The Physician shall provide the following:
 

Pioneer Memorial Clinic Normal workweek is 4-5 days to be determined 
by Physician in consultation with District. 

Irrigon Medical Clinic Occasionally may be asked to fill in based on 
need/volumes. 



Page 2 of 15 
 

Ione Community Clinic Occasionally may be asked to fill in based on 
need/volumes. 

ER (On Call) Shared call with other providers as agreed upon.

Hospital Patients As agreed upon / and required if taking ER call.

Procedures As needed and qualified to perform. 

PA Supervision As needed and agreed upon. 

 
1.2  Physician's Professional Qualifications: Physician represents and warrants 

to District as follows: 
 
a. Physician is or will become licensed to practice medicine in Oregon, and such 

license is in good standing, without restriction, probation, limiting condition or 
institution, or threat thereof, or of a proceeding seeking to impose a limitation;
 

b. Physician is trained in Family Practice Medicine and is Board certified or board 
eligible. 

 
c. Physician holds an unrestricted DEA permit and an unrestricted right to 

participate in Medicare and Medicaid programs; and 
 
d. The Medical Staff application executed by Physician, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Schedule A, is complete, true, accurate, and correct. 
 

1.3  Physician's General Duties: The following shall be among Physician's 
general duties: 
 
a. "Physician shall abide by all policies, procedures, rules and regulations adopted, 

from time to time, by the  District"  that does not mitigate, violate, obstruct, 
compromise, or thwart Physician's professional, ethical, or moral tenants, ideals, 
or beliefs. 
 

b. Ensure that any person accepted by the District for treatment receives prompt and 
appropriate medical treatment; 

 
c. Conduct Physician's medical practice in a professional manner consistent with the 

applicable standards of care in the geographic area serviced by District (the 
"Community"), in accordance with the standards of applicable accrediting and 
certification bodies; 

 



Page 3 of 15 
 

d. Follow the administrative written directives established from time to time by 
District; 

 
e. Actively participate in District's initiatives to maintain and improve the quality, 

success, and reputation of the medical services provided by District; 
 
f. Maintain an unrestricted DEA permit; 
 
g. Maintain the right to participate in Medicare and Medicaid programs, without 

restriction, probation, or limiting condition; 
 
h. Provide Professional Services to District's patients/residents who are enrollees of 

HMOs, PPOs or other third party payer sponsored  health plans (collectively the 
"Plans") in which District is a participating provider, and fully comply with all 
administrative requirements as well as requirements imposed upon District by 
such plans, unless such plan compromise medical care of the enrollee; 

 
i. Such other duties as shall be mutually agreed upon by Physician and District; and
 
j. Preceptor for mid/level provider as needed. 

 
1.4  Status as Employee of District: 

Physician is an employee of District. District shall assume responsibility for patients 
for treatment at District and Physician shall provide Professional Services to patients 
accepted for treatment by District unless in the Physician's best medical judgment 
determines it is in the patient's best interest to not accept said patient for care. Except 
as required by law, District shall not control or direct the specific medical decisions 
of Physician. In all matters concerning the performance and administration of this 
Agreement, the District shall act through the Chief Executive Officer. 
 

1.5  Physician's Schedule: 
 
a. Physician shall be available to provide Professional Services at District for such 

patient contact hours as agreed upon by Physician and District. On call schedule 
for Physician and all Physicians subsequently employed after the date of this 
Agreement will be mutually agreed upon. 
 

b. Physician may provide Professional Services for entities other than District 
("Outside Services") but will not compete against District. Income generated from 
Physician performance of approved Outside Services shall belong to Physician. 
Physician shall be solely responsible for all obligations and liabilities related to 



Page 4 of 15 
 

Outside Services. District consent to Physician providing Outside Services, 
however, shall not in any way be construed as a waiver of its rights under the 
covenant not to compete referred to in Article V below. 

 
c. District may assign, with consent, Physician to provide Professional Services at 

any District facility. 
 

1.6  Compliance with Quality Standards Applicable to District Medical Staff 
Members: 

 
a. Physician shall, in the performance of Physician's duties and obligations 

hereunder, comply with all bylaws, rules and regulations, policies, procedures and 
standards of conduct adopted, from time to time, by the Medical Staff of District.
 

b. Physician performance will be reviewed by District annually. The standards or 
criteria for such review shall be mutually agreeable by the District and the 
Physician. District shall not be in breach of this Agreement if it fails to conduct 
the performance evaluation within the stated time periods. 

 
1.7  Inspection of Books:  Physician may, upon minimum of 48 hours advance 

notice to District, inspect during normal business hours those books and records of 
District which are necessary to determine Physician's compensation. 
 

1.8  Quality Assurance Programs:  Physician shall cooperate with and participate 
in all quality assurance programs that may be established, created, or adopted for 
District. 
 

1.9  Education: Physician shall attend continuing medical education programs as 
necessary to maintain Physician's license to practice medicine in Oregon, and other 
necessary permits and certifications. 
 

1.10 Reports and Records: Physician shall promptly, completely, and accurately 
prepare and maintain (or cause to be promptly, completely, and accurately prepared 
and maintained) all reports, claims, correspondence, and records, including all 
medical records, as required by District related to Professional Services rendered by 
Physician at District, which reports, claims, correspondence records, and medical 
records shall belong solely to District. Failure to comply may result in suspension, 
termination, or fines pursuant to District policies. 
 
Copies of all reports and records shall be made available to Physician at their request. 
Physician agrees to protect the confidentiality thereof pursuant to District policies.



Page 5 of 15 
 

1.11 Notice of Actions: Physician shall immediately notify District of any of the 
following actions: 
 
a. Loss, suspension, or imposition of probationary status with respect to Physician's 

license to practice medicine in Oregon or any other jurisdiction or the scheduling 
of a hearing or conference regarding the same; 
 

b. Any notice regarding the potential imposition or the actual imposition  of a 
sanction upon Physician's right to practice medicine in Oregon or any other 
jurisdiction, including, but not limited to, the placing of Physician on monitored 
status; 

 
c. Any notice regarding the potential imposition or the actual imposition of a 

sanction by any professional medical organization in which Physician is a 
member; 

 
d. Probation, loss, suspension or reduction of Physician's clinical privileges at any 

other hospital or any other actions that affect Physician's medical practice at any 
other hospital; 

 
e. Any notice regarding the potential or actual loss, suspension, or restriction upon 

Physician's DEA permit or the scheduling of a hearing or conference regarding the 
same; 

 
f. Any notice regarding the potential or actual loss, suspension, or restriction upon 

Physician's ability to practice in Medicare or Medicaid programs or the scheduling 
of a hearing or conference regarding the same; 

 
g. Physician conviction of a criminal offense; and 
 
h. Physician's knowledge of any potential threatened or actual claim against 

Physician, District, or its employees. 
 

ARTICLE II - RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF DISTRICT 
 

2.1  Rights and Duties of District: District shall manage District in all aspects of 
operation. Such authority shall include, but not be limited to, the determination of 
Physician and non-physician staffing levels. District shall provide all equipment, 
supplies, and non-physician personnel required for operations of District as 
determined by District. 



Page 6 of 15 
 

ARTICLE III - PHYSICIAN COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
 

3.1  Physician Compensation: District shall compensate Physician in the amount 
indicated by the attached Physician Hourly Rates sheet based on contract years served 
with the District, payable on the District's usual employee paydays. All compensation 
to Physician shall be subject to normal payroll withholdings and deductions. 
Additional compensation for supervisory or advisory roles will be by addendum to the 
agreement or by a separate agreement. 

 
 

3.2  Employee Benefits:  District shall provide Physician with the benefits set 
forth in District employee handbook as specified for non-union employees including 
Long Term disability for Physicians as well as Medical, Dental, and Vision insurance 
for immediate family members including students.  In addition, Physician is eligible 
for MCHD retirement contribution (401a) and Tax-deferred programs (457 and 403b) 
which may be amended by the District from time to time as prescribed by law. The 
policies in the employee handbook and the District Policies and Procedures Manual 
shall apply to Physician except as they may be inconsistent with this Agreement, in 
which case they shall be superseded by this agreement. 

 
3.3  Vacation, Sick Leave, Holidays, and Continuing Education:  In each 12-

month period of employment, Physician shall be entitled to paid time off and 
continuing education benefits as described in the attached Physician Paid Time Off & 
Continuing Education document. 

 
3.4  Malpractice Insurance: District shall provide Physician with medical 

malpractice insurance, current and extended endorsement (tail coverage), in amount, 
in form, and with an insurance company to be determined by District in its sole and 
absolute discretion but to be no less than $1 million/$3 million. 

 
3.5  Relocation & Sign-on Bonus: District shall pay the Physician a $20,000 sign 

on bonus and $15,000 for relocation.  Both amounts shall be paid through payroll and 
treated as taxable wages. 

 
ARTICLE IV - TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
4.1  Term: This Agreement shall commence no later than August 1, 2022 and shall 

continue through July 31, 2025 unless either party gives 120 days' notice of 
termination or resignation. Physician's employment may be terminated only for good 
cause shown or if District provides 120 days' notice of termination. A three-year



Page 7 of 15 
 

renewal of this Agreement may be available to Physician if District does not provide 
notice of termination. 

 
4.2  Termination: 
 

a. District may terminate this Agreement for good cause without advance notice. 
"Good cause" shall include material breach of or failure to perform the terms of 
this Agreement; an unfavorable performance evaluation as provided in Section 
1.6b; misconduct, including but not limited to conviction of a felony; or material 
misrepresentation or misstatement on the Medical Staff application incorporated 
herein by this reference or otherwise attached hereto as schedule A. Upon such 
termination, Physician shall be paid all compensation due to the date of 
termination. 
 

b. This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon death of Physician or inability 
of District or Physician to complete any portion of this Agreement. 

 
4.3  Vacation of Premises: Physician shall vacate District premises immediately 

upon termination of this Agreement and surrender to District all property of District, 
including but not limited to keys to District premises and all storage areas therein, 
computers, pagers, and cellular telephones. 
 

ARTICLE V - COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE 
 

5.1  Covenant Not to Compete: Physician agrees he/she has received proper and 
timely statutory notice of the following terms and conditions of employment in 
accordance with Oregon law, and has received a copy of this Agreement at least two 
weeks before signing same.  For a period of 18 months after termination of 

 kind in 
Morrow County. Unless otherwise permitted by the written consent of the District, 
Physician shall not, on their own account or as an employee, landlord, lender, 
trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, officer, 
manager, director, member or stockholder of any other capacity, directly or 
indirectly, in whole or in part, for a period of 12 months after termination of 

 

a. Engage in any activities that are in competition with the District, 
including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any 
medical services that are similar to services offered at the practice 
sites of the District at which Physician provided services during their 
employment and upon expiration or termination of their employment; 
 



Page 8 of 15 
 

b. Hire, solicit or encourage the resignation of any employee of the 
company with whom Physician had a working relationship during that 

 
 

c. Solicit or divert patients with whom the Physician had personal contact during 
such employment;  
 

d. Influence or attempt to influence any payer, provider or other person or entity 
to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with the District relating to 
any practice site; or 
 

e. Influence or attempt to influence any person or entity who is a contracting 
party with the District during the time of their employment, or at any time 
thereafter during the non-competition period, to terminate any written or oral 
agreement with the District or any affiliate of the District. 

 

  In the event any arbitrator of court of competent jurisdiction should determine that 
any prohibition under this Article is unfair, illegal, or inequitable, it is the intention of the 
Parties that, once such determination is made, then this Article shall not be rendered void 
or unenforceable. Instead, the arbitrator or court shall scale down the time period and/or 
geographic area, as appropriate, so as to preserve the validity of this Article, in which this 
Article is to be deemed to have been intended by the Parties to exclude such excess time 
period and/or geographic area and otherwise be effective. This Article survives and shall 
remain enforceable after the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

  Physician understands that this Article and compliance with same is a key condition 
to his/her employment with the District and that it is based on good and sufficient 
consideration, which the Parties hereby acknowledge.  The parties recognize that 
irreparable injuries would occur in the event of a breach and there are substantial 
difficulties with estimating monetary and other consequential damages caused by a 
breach of this Article and, therefore, mutually agree that the District is entitled to 
immediately file suit for declaratory and/or equitable relief in Circuit Court seeking to 
immediately enjoin Physician from practicing medicine or proceeding with conduct that 
would be in violation of this Article. Physician also understands that this remedy is not 
the exclusive remedy available to the District and that the District may elect to pursue 
any other remedy authorized in the law, including but not limited to seeking 

sequential 
damages, and/or any other losses, damages or injuries that result therefrom.    

 
 

 



Page 9 of 15 
 

ARTICLE VI - MISCELLANEOUS
 

6.1  Patient/Resident Fees: 
 

a. District, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall establish fees to be charged to 
patients/residents of District. All such fees will be billed and collected solely by 
District and will belong to it. 
 

b. Physician hereby assigns all rights, title, and interest Physician may have in 
payments for Professional Services to District and agrees not to bill separately or 
to in any way impair the right or ability of District to bill and collect for such 
services. 

 
c. Physician shall cooperate with the District and execute any documentation 

necessary to effectuate the assignment of fees described herein. 
 

6.2  Patient Records:  District is the owner of all patient/resident records. District 
shall have the right, subject to applicable law, to freely transfer patient/resident 
records and other assets of District to any other party. 

 
6.3  Arbitration: Any dispute concerning the interpretation, enforcement, 

implementation, termination, or damages for breach of this Agreement or agreements 
ancillary hereto shall be submitted to binding arbitration. All arbitration hearings shall 
be held in Heppner, Oregon and conducted pursuant to rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The parties shall select an Arbitrator, and if the parties 
cannot agree on an Arbitrator within 30 days of a demand for arbitration, an 
Arbitrator shall be selected by the Presiding Judge of the Morrow County Circuit 
Court. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be enforced with the same effect as a 
decree of a court having competent jurisdiction.  Any fees and expenses of the 
Arbitrator or Court Reporter assisting in any hearing shall be included in the award of 
damages to the prevailing party. The parties will pay their own respective costs and 
expenses, including attorney fees; provided, however, if a party fails to proceed with 
the arbitration, unsuccessfully challenges the Arbitrator's award, or fails to comply 
with arbitrator's award, the other party is entitled to costs of suit, including reasonable 
attorney fees, for having to compel arbitration or defend or enforce the award.

 
6.4  Assignments: This Agreement is personal to Physician. Nothing contained in 

this Agreement shall be construed to permit assignment of any Physician's rights or 
delegation of Physician's duties under this Agreement and such assignment is 
expressly prohibited. 

 



Page 10 of 15 
 

6.5 Illegality/Severability: If, for any reason, any part, or provision of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to, the covenant not to compete, or any 
provision relating to termination of this Agreement, shall be deemed by a court or by 
an Arbitrator pursuant to Section 6.3 above to be legally invalid or unenforceable, the 
validity of the remaining parts and provisions  of this Agreement shall not be affected 
thereby and such provision(s) shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent 
necessary to make such provision(s) consistent with the applicable law. In its 
modified form, such provision(s) shall be enforceable. 

 
6.6  Notice: Any notice or consent required or desired to be given with respect to 

this Agreement shall be in writing and shall  be deemed  delivered effective when 
personally delivered or three (3) days after it is deposited in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, registered  or certified,  and  correctly addressed to the party 
intended to receive notice at the party's address set forth below, or such other 
addresses as a party may have specified by a prior written notice to the other party:

 
District: 
Chief Executive Officer  
Morrow County Health District 
P.O. Box 9 
564 E. Pioneer Drive Heppner, OR 97836 

 
Physician: 
Rodney Schaffer, MD 

 
6.7  Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties regarding the subject matter described herein, and it supersedes and 
replaces all written and oral agreements heretofore made or existing by and between 
the parties, or their representatives insofar as the subject matter of this Agreement is 
concerned. There shall be no modifications hereunder unless it is in written form and 
signed by the parties. It is agreed by each of the parties that there have been no 
representations or warranties except those expressly contained in this Agreement.

 
6.8  Compliance with Law: 
 

a. Medicare Disclosure Provision. For the purpose of implementing Section 1861(v) 
(1) (i) of the Social Security Act, as amended and any written regulation thereto, 
District agrees to comply with the following statutory requirement governing the 
maintenance of documentation to verify the cost of services rendered pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Until the expiration of four years after furnishing of the services 
provided under this Agreement, Physician shall, upon written request, make 



Page 11 of 15 
 

available to the Secretary of the US Department of Health and Human Services or, 
upon written or oral request make available to the US Comptroller General, and 
their representatives, this Agreement and all books, documents, and records 
necessary to certify the nature and extent of the cost of those services. If District, 
through its employee physicians, or contract physicians, carries out the duties of 
this Agreement through a subcontract for ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more, 
over a twelve (12) month period, with a related organization, the subcontract will 
also contain an access clause to permit the Secretary, Comptroller General, and 
their representatives access to the related organizations, books, and records. 
 

b. No Reciprocation Outside Agreement. The parties hereby acknowledge and agree 
that none of the benefits derived hereunder require or are in any way contingent 
upon the admission, recommendation, referral, or any other arrangement for the 
provision of any item or service by any of the parties to any entity or person, 
including but not limited to District. Further, no party hereto has entered into this 
Agreement with the intention of inducing or accepting inducement for such 
referrals. 

 
c. Safe Harbor Regulations.  The Department of Health and Human Services has 

promulgated final rules (the "Regulations") setting out certain "safe harbors," 
defining practices which will not be considered in violation of 42 CFR Section 
1320(a)-7(b). The parties hereby wish to comply with these rules and have 
endeavored to fashion this Agreement in compliance therewith. Further, the 
parties hereby agree that this Agreement will automatically be amended so that its 
terms conform to any changes in the Regulations, or any future final rules 
establishing new "Safe Harbors." If, within sixty (60) days following issuance of 
such changes in the regulations or issuance of new rules, such amendments cannot 
be made or if the parties cannot agree how such amendments should be properly 
made, this Agreement will terminate immediately upon written notice by either 
party to the other party. 

 
6.9  Termination in the Event of Government Action:  If any legislation, rules, 

regulations  or  procedures are duly  passed, adopted  or implemented by any federal, 
state or local government or legislative body, or private agency, or if District or 
Physician receives  notice of any actual or threatened decision, finding, or action by 
any governmental or private agency, court, or other third party (collectively referred 
to as "Action") which, if and when implemented, would have the effect of (i) denying 
expected reimbursement for all or a substantial portion of the professional fees 
charged for professional  services  rendered by District, or (ii) subjecting Physician or 
District or any of their officers, directors, employees or agents to civil or criminal 
prosecution, or other adverse proceeding in relation to this Agreement, Physician and 



Page 12 of 15 
 

District shall attempt to amend this Agreement  or alter the operation  of District  or 
Physician's  practice herein in order to avoid the action. If the parties hereto, acting in 
good faith, are unable to make amendments or alterations to meet the requirements of 
the agency, court or third party in question in sufficient time to avoid the Action, or 
alternatively, the parties determine in good faith that compliance with such 
requirements is impractical or unfeasible, this Agreement shall immediately 
terminate. 

 
6.10 Governing Law: The validity, interpretation, performance, remedies, and all 

other issues arising under or out of this Agreement shall be governed by Oregon law.
 
6.11 Heading: Headings have been inserted solely for the ease of use and shall not 

be used to interpret, qualify, or restrict provisions, which appear there under. 
 
6.12 Waiver: Neither party shall be deemed to have waived any rights hereunder 

unless such waiver shall be in writing and signed by the party.  No delay or omission 
on the part of any party in exercising any right shall waive such right. A waiver by a 
party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not waive or prejudice the 
party's right to otherwise demand strict compliance with that or any other provision in 
the future. 

 
6.13 Physician May Not Act on Behalf of District: It is specifically understood 

and agreed that Physician shall have no authority to act on behalf of or bind District 
with respect to any contract or agreement. 

 
6.14 Confidentiality: 
 

a. Except as required by law, no party hereto shall disclose this Agreement, the 
substance of either this Agreement or any information it shall acquire in the course 
of its performance hereunder to any person or entity who or which is not a party 
hereto, except to those employees or agents of either party, including accountants 
and attorneys, whose assistance is necessary to either party's performance of its 
respective duties and obligations hereunder. In the event that one of the parties 
hereto discloses the terms of this Agreement to any third party not authorized to 
receive said disclosures, such shall be grounds for immediate termination of this 
Agreement, as determined by District in its sole discretion. 
 

b. All patient lists and demographic and marketing information regarding District's 
medical practice is the personal property of District and constitutes confidential 
trade secrets of District, which comprise the substance of District's business. The 
unauthorized use, reproduction, or dissemination or publication of such 



Page 13 of 15 
 

information constitutes a violation of District's exclusive right to the use of such 
information, and any action or attempt on the part of Physician to utilize such 
records for any purpose not specifically permitted hereunder shall give rise to a 
right to recover damages and obtain injunctive and any other relief available under 
Oregon law on the part of District. Physician expressly acknowledges and agrees 
that all patients to whom medical services may be rendered under the terms of this 
agreement are and will remain District's patients. 

 
c. Any patient information received by or divulged to Physician with respect to 

patients of District is privileged and shall not be divulged except as required by law 
or as permitted by law for medical professional purposes, and in accordance with 
any applicable rules and regulations of District, without the prior express written 
permission of the patient. 

 
6.15 District Right To Hire Other Physicians and Engage in Other Businesses:

District, at its sole and absolute discretion, shall have the right at any time to enter 
into agreements with any other physician with whom District wishes to employ or 
contract with for the purpose of providing professional services to District's patients 
and to engage in any business or professional activities of any kind or nature 
whatsoever. 

 
6.16 Agreement Creates No Ownership Rights: Except as specifically provided 

in this Agreement, Physician shall have no interest arising from or by reason of this 
Agreement in the ownership of the equipment, accounts receivable, medical and other 
patient records, books of account or other property of the District, including both 
tangible and intangible assets (including but not limited to any goodwill or going 
concern value associated with District's or any clinic's business or logos). 

 
6.17 No Third-Party Liability: Except as  otherwise  provided  by law or as 

specifically agreed by any person against whom a claim for payment may be asserted, 
the obligations of District hereunder shall be solely those of District and shall not be 
deemed or construed to create any obligation or liability on the  part of any member 
of the District Board, officer, or physician of District, any other individual or any 
other corporation or other entity or organization, regardless of any preexisting 
relationship between such individual, corporation, entity, or organization and District. 

 
6.18 Cooperation with Other District Physicians: Physician agrees to reasonably 

cooperate with the other physicians who are on the Medical Staff of District. 
 
6.19 Conduct: 
 



Page 14 of 15 
 

a. In accordance with District's zero tolerance to drugs policy, Physician agrees to 
abstain from the use of alcohol or drugs and from being under the influence of 
same during work hours, including while on call. Further, Physician 
acknowledges that the District's reputation would be adversely affected by any 
possession, manufacture, sale, or use of illegal substances or legal prescription 
medications without the appropriate license or prescription and illegal-use or 
abuse of alcohol even during non-working hours. Physician agrees to abstain from 
all such activities. Physician acknowledges that District conducts alcohol and drug 
screening for all new employees, and thereafter reserves the right to test for the 
use of alcohol or drugs for cause. 
 

b. Physician agrees to conduct themselves at all times in a professional and ethical 
manner, reasonably calculated to build and maintain good relationships with other 
professionals, referral sources, coworkers, patients and patients' family members. 
Ability to work harmoniously and efficiently and effectively with others is a 
condition to Physician's employment. 

 
6.20 Resignation: Physician agrees to give District a 120-day advance resignation 

notice in writing. District may terminate Physician's employment at any time 
following such notice if determined to be in the best interest of District. District will 
pay Physician through the notification period of 120 days if Physician was and 
remains in full conformance with all applicable District policies and provisions of this 
Agreement. At no time, including during the notification period, shall Physician:

 
a. Solicit District patients or inform District patients of their impending departure 

other than through District-authorized communication methods and content;
 

b. Offer employment or a contract to any District employee or contractor prior to one 
year after Physician's termination from employment by District or solicit or 
encourage any such person to leave the District; 
 

c. Use District time to compete or to prepare to compete. 
1 Communications: The parties agree to the following processes for an orderly 

separation of Physician and District in the event of termination of Physician's 
employment for any reason. District and Physician shall jointly prepare one or more 
written communications, which may be used by either party to inform patients and 
others of Physician's departure and the effective date, and the name of the continuing 
District physician who will assume responsibility for the specified patient's care or 
that of a group of patients. Such statements shall be without attribution of cause or 
reason for Physician's termination and without promotion or identification of any 
subsequent intended practice plans or employment or contract relationships with 



Page 15 of 15 
 

Physician.  No other communication  shall be made by Physician to District patients, 
managed care plans, self-insured employers, the media, or to business organizations 
concerning the matters of  Physician's  prior affiliation  with the District, their 
termination or the reasons therefore, nor shall any such communication be made to 
other physicians within District's referral  area except to the extent Physician  is 
making a specific application  for employment  or contract with such a Physician and 
is required in the course thereof to explain the circumstances of their termination 
except for the purposes of future Physician credentialing. For a period of one year 
following their termination, Physician shall not solicit or otherwise seek to induce or 
encourage transfer of the business or patronage of any patient, third party payer, or 
arranger of medical care with whom Physician has had any contact during their
District employment or for whose patients Physician has provided care in their 
District employment. The parties agree that the above provisions are reasonable and  
necessary  to  protect  legitimate  District interests in its reputation and its relationship 
with patients  and  other  business sources, and that District would be irreparably 
injured  by  Physician's  breach  of these obligations and, District shall be entitled to 
an injunction in court or in arbitration to prevent such breach. District shall further be 
entitled to recover damages in the amount of injury to its reputation and lost revenue 
from Physician in the event of their breach of these obligations. 

 
6.22 Survival: The covenants, representations, warranties, and provisions of this 

agreement shall survive termination and shall be fully enforceable thereafter in 
accordance with their terms. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written. 
 
 
PHYSICIAN     MORROW COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
 
By: ______________________  By: ______________________ 
Rodney Schaffer, MD   Emily Roberts, CEO 
 
Date: _____________________  Date: _____________________ 
 


